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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Pasadena Area Community College District
Pasadena, California 91106

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Pasadena Area Community 
College District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to 
the financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Pasadena Area Community College District
Pasadena, California 91106

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements listed in the aforementioned table of contents present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the District as of June 30, 2016, and the 
results of its operations, changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of postemployment healthcare benefits funding 
progress, schedules of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (STRS and 
CalPERS), and schedules of District pension contributions (STRS and CalPERS) be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the District’s financial 
statements as a whole. The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is also not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary section, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
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accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
November 14, 2016 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP 
Glendora, California 
November 14, 2016



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

INTRODUCTION

This section of our annual financial report offers a narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the Pasadena Area Community College District (the District) for the year 
ended June 30, 2016. This analysis is presented with comparative information from the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015 to highlight changes from one year to the next. This 
section of our report should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements, including 
footnotes. Responsibility for the completeness and accuracy of this information rests with the 
District’s management.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the annual report consists of three basic 
financial statements that provide information on the District’s activities as a whole; the 
Statement of Net Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; 
and the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Pasadena Area Community College District’s financial statements are presented in 
accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements -  and Management’s Discussion and Analysis -  for State and Local 
Governments, and No. 35, Basic Financial Statements -  and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis -  for Public College and Universities. These statements allow for the presentation of 
financial activity and results of operations which focuses on the District as a whole. The entity­
wide financial statements present the overall results of operations whereby all of the District’s 
activities are consolidated into one total versus the traditional presentation by fund type. The 
focus of the Statement of Net Position is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the 
District. This statement combines and consolidates current financial resources (net short-term 
spendable resources) with capital assets and long-term obligations. The Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position focuses on the costs of the District’s operational 
activities with revenues and expenses categorized as operating and non-operating, and expenses 
are reported by natural classification. This approach is intended to summarize and simplify the 
user’s analysis of the cost of various District services to students and the public. The Statement 
of Cash Flows provides an analysis of the sources and uses of cash with the operations of the 
District.

As recommended by the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office, the District 
follows the Business-Type Activity (BTA) model for financial statement reporting purposes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

• The District ended the year with a General Fund (Unrestricted [Fund 01] and Restricted 
[Fund 03]) balance of $22,508,135. The State Chancellor’s Office recommends reserve 
levels of 5% of total General Fund expenditure. The District has exceeded the
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

recommended amount of 5% reserve requirement which equates to $7.7 million by 
setting aside an amount for economic uncertainty greater than the requirement (total 
ending fund balance of $20,846,737 in Fund 01 only). While the ending balance is 
comprised primarily of cash and receivables, the Board of Trustees authorized the use of 
inter-fund borrowing to ensure the orderly conduct of District business. Inter-fund 
borrowing was not needed to cover cash flow requirements during the 2015-16 fiscal 
year.

• Salaries and benefits of the Academic, Classified, and Administrative salaries of District 
employees represented 90.36% of total General Fund expenditures.

• As a condition of the passage of the District’s $150 million General Obligation Bond, 
Measure P, a Citizens’ Oversight Committee was formed under Proposition 39 
requirements and met quarterly. The meetings are generally held at 6:00 pm every quarter 
during the months of January, April, August, and October at Pasadena City College and 
are open to the public.

• The District provided Federal, State and Local student financial aid to qualifying District 
students in the amount of approximately $55.4 million. This represents an increase of 
$2.0 million from the 2014-2015 fiscal year. This aid is provided through grants, loans, 
and tuition reductions from the Federal government, State Chancellor’s Office, and local 
funding.

• The District’s primary funding source is from apportionment received from the State of 
California. The primary basis of this apportionment is the calculation of Full-Time 
Equivalent Students (FTES). During the 2015-2016 fiscal year, total reported FTES were 
23,502 as compared to 22,984 in the 2014-2015 fiscal year, an increase of 518 FTES or 
2.3%.

• As of June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of Net 
Pension Liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to 
the District. This is a result of implementation of new GASB Statements No. 68 and No. 
71, which requires that the District report its proportionate share of the net pension 
liabilities, pension expense and deferred inflow and outflow of resources.

• The District’s Change in Net Position for the current fiscal year of $6.1 million. This is 
primarily due to one-time funding provided by the State in revenue from State Mandated 
Costs Reimbursements net of one time expenditure contributions to workman’s 
compensation fund, capital services fund, capital outlay fund, OPEB fund and self­
insurance funds.

-ii-
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Statement of Net Position as of June 30,

(in  th o u san d s) 

2016
(in th ousands) 

2015

A SSE T S
C a s h  a n d  equivalents $ 9 4 ,0 4 9 $ 8 1 ,7 5 5

R ece ivab les 1 1 ,4 3 4 11 ,3 7 6

Inven to ries  a n d  o th e r  asse ts 3 ,561 3 ,4 9 7

T o ta l 1 0 9 ,0 4 4 9 6 ,6 2 8

C ap ita l a sse ts , n e t o f  dep rec ia tio n 2 0 9 ,4 5 4 2 1 4 ,8 8 6

TO TAL A SSE T S 3 1 8 ,4 9 8 3 1 1 ,5 1 4

D E F E R R E D  O U TFLO W S O F  R E SO U R C E S
D e fe rre d  charge  o n  refunding 3 ,3 0 9 1 ,845

D efe rred  outflow s - pensions  (n o te  10) 15 ,035 7 ,6 0 5

T o ta l D e fe rre d  O u tflow s o f  R eso u rc e 1 8 ,3 4 4 9 ,4 5 0

TO TAL A SSE T S A N D  D E F E R R E D  O U TFLO W S O F R E SO U R C E S $ 3 3 6 ,8 4 2 $ 3 2 0 ,9 6 4

LIA BILITIES
A c co u n ts  p ay ab le  a n d  a cc ru e d  liabilities $ 15 ,843 $ 1 3 ,9 3 7

C laim s liability 5 ,1 6 3 4 ,4 4 9

O th e r  c u rren t liabilities 7 2 9 7 7 4

U n e a rn ed  revenue 19 ,4 6 8 14 ,3 0 6

L o n g -te rm  liabilities - c u rren t po rtio n 7 ,5 3 0 9 ,1 9 5

T o ta l 4 8 ,7 3 3 4 2 ,6 6 1

L o n g -te rm  liabilities less c u rren t po rtio n 2 1 8 ,4 7 7 2 0 0 ,6 6 5

TO TAL LIA BILITIES 2 6 7 ,2 1 0 2 4 3 ,3 2 6

D E F E R R E D  IN FLO W S O F R E SO U R C E S
D efe rred  inflows - pensions  (n o te  10) 11 ,305 2 5 ,4 1 5

TO TAL D E F E R R E D  IN FL O W S O F  R E SO U R C E S 11 ,305 2 5 ,4 1 5

N E T  PO SITIO N
In v es ted  in cap ita l a sse ts , n e t o f  re la ted  d e b t 12 0 ,3 1 3 1 2 4 ,7 3 8

R estric ted 1 6 ,5 2 7 17 ,8 4 0

U n restric ted (7 8 ,5 1 3 ) (9 0 ,3 5 5 )

TO TAL N E T  PO SITIO N 5 8 ,3 2 7 5 2 ,2 2 3

TO TAL LIA BILITIES A N D  D E F E R R E D  IN FLO W S  

O F R E SO U R C E S A N D  N E T  PO SITIO N $ 3 3 6 ,8 4 2 $ 3 2 0 ,9 6 4

This schedule has been prepared from the District’s Statements of Net Position, which is 
presented on an accrual basis of accounting whereby capital assets are capitalized, depreciated, 
and all liabilities of the District are recognized.

Capital assets, net of depreciation is stated at the net historical value (original cost) of land, 
buildings, construction in progress, and equipment less accumulated depreciation.

-iii-



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Long-term obligations consist primarily of the general obligation bond issue, Public Agency 
Retirement Services (PARS) - Supplementary Retirement Plan (SRP), Other Post-Employment 
Benefits Obligation (OPEB), compensated absences, Capital leases and proportionate share of 
Net Pension Liability (NPL) for CalSTRS and CalPERS. Long-term obligation increased by 
approximately $17.8 million. This primarily resulted from an increase in recording NPL ($22.8 
million). This is a result of implementation of new GASB Statements No. 68 and No. 71, which 
requires that the District report its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension 
expense and deferred inflow and outflow of resources and an increase in OPEB liability ($1.9). 
In addition there was a net decrease of $6.9 million due to retirement and refinancing of debt 
($4.2 million) and entering into a SRP ($1.0 million), and retirement of capital leases ($1.7 
million).

In April 2016 the District refunded $33,995,000 General Obligation Bond with a projected 
savings to the taxpayers of over $7 million dollars.

In 2015-16, the District’s long-term credit rating held firm with S&P’s AA+ and Moody’s Aa2.

-iv-



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position for the Year Ended June 30,

(in th o u san d s) 

2016
(in tho u san d s) 

2015

O p era tin g  R evenues

N e t  tuition a n d  fees $ 2 3 ,7 3 7 $ 2 3 ,8 9 5

G ran ts  and  c o n trac ts , n o n -cap ita l 58 ,4 1 1 5 8 ,7 7 3

A uxiliary sales a n d  charges 4 ,9 2 6 5 ,0 0 8

T o ta l o p e ra tin g  revenues 8 7 ,0 7 4 8 7 ,6 7 6

O p era tin g  E x p en ses

S ala ries  and  benefits 1 3 5 ,2 9 7 1 3 5 ,7 5 0

S upp lies , m ateria ls  a n d  o th e r op era tin g  e x p en se s  a n d  serv ices 3 9 ,2 0 4 3 2 ,7 4 5

F inancial aid 3 7 ,9 9 2 3 7 ,6 2 6

D eprecia tion 9 ,7 7 0 11 ,241

T o ta l o p e ra tin g  e x p en ses 2 2 2 ,2 6 3 2 1 7 ,3 6 2

O p era tin g  loss (1 3 5 ,1 8 9 ) (1 2 9 ,6 8 6 )

N o n -o p e ra tin g  revenues

S ta te  appo rtionm en ts , n o n -c a p ita l 8 4 ,7 0 4 7 8 ,4 1 8

L o c a l p ro p e r ty  tax es 3 4 ,4 3 0 3 2 ,2 6 0

S ta te  revenues 2 4 ,2 1 2 6 ,9 3 1

Investm en t incom e, n e t 3 9 9 4 8 0

T o ta l n o n -o p e ra tin g  rev en u es 14 3 ,7 4 5 1 1 8 ,0 8 9

O th e r  revenues , (ex p en ses), gains o r  (lo sses)

L o c a l revenues , cap ita l 125 23

In te res t exp en se (3 ,4 2 8 ) (4 ,7 0 7 )

O th e r  n o n o p e ra tio n  rev en u es  a n d  tran sfe rs 851 9 2 2

T o ta l o th e r revenues , (ex p e n se s), gains o r  ( lo sses) (2 ,4 5 2 ) (3 ,7 6 2 )

In c re a se /(D e c re ase ) in n e t position $ 6 ,1 0 4 $ (1 5 ,3 5 9 )

The operating revenue for the District is specifically defined as revenues from users of the 
colleges’ facilities and programs. Excluded from the operating revenues are the components of 
the primary source of District funding -  the State apportionment process. Two main components 
include State apportionment and local property taxes, as these resources of revenue are from the 
general population of the State of California, and not from the direct users of the educational 
services (students), they are considered to be non-operating. As a result, the operating loss of 
$135.1 million is balanced by the other funding sources. Total District revenues were more than 
expenditures by $6.1 million for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Auxiliary revenue consists primarily of bookstore revenues. The bookstore is maintained to 
provide books, supplies, and other items to the students and faculty of the District. The 
operations are self-supporting through product sales. Profits from the bookstore are used for 
student government and club activities.

-v-
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Grants and contracts revenue relate to student financial aid, as well as specific Federal and State 
grants received for programs serving the students of the District. These grant and program 
revenues are restricted as to the allowable expenses related to the programs.

The interest income is primarily the result of cash held at the Los Angeles County Treasury. The 
interest expense relates to interest payments on the General Obligation Bonds, lease 
commitments, and a note payable described in Notes 6-8 of the financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended June 30,

Cash Provided By (Used in)

(in thousands) 
2016

(in thousands) 
2015

Operating activities $ (118,862) $(113,698)
Non-capital financing activities 143,889 132,609
Capital and related financing activities (13,130) (18,297)
Investing activities 397 464

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 12,294 $ 1,078

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about cash receipts and payments during the 
year. This statement also assists users in assessing the District’s ability to meet its obligations as 
they come due and its need for external financing.

The primary operating receipts are federal, state and local grants along with student tuition and 
Bookstore sales. The primary operating expenses of the District is the payment of salaries and 
benefits to instructional and classified support staff, as well as District administrators. Capital 
financing activities relate to the spending of Measure P bond proceeds.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING THE FUTURE OF PASADENA AREA 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The financial strength and stability of the Pasadena Area Community College District is closely 
aligned with California's economic position as State apportionments, State Mandated Cost 
Reimbursements including one time money in fiscal year 2015-2016, and property taxes 
allocated to the District represent approximately 84.6 percent of the unrestricted General Fund. 
As a result of the passage of Proposition 30 and the improving State economy Proposition 98 
funds increased, but it remains far from what is needed in terms of funding and stability. As a 
result, it continues to be prudent for the District to maintain its diligent practice of funding strong 
reserves to manage economic challenges.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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While the trend of strong budgets continues in California, the 2016-17 fiscal year budget was 
developed with caution as a result of economic uncertainties. One of the most significant 
uncertainties is the Education Protection Act that was created as a temporary fix during the 
recessionary period. The sales tax component of the act ends in 2016 which is approximately 
20% of the Prop 30 revenue, and the income tax component terminates in 2018. Another 
significant concern is the increasing contribution rates to the STRS and PERS obligations.

The District will continue Measure P construction activities throughout the 2016-17 fiscal year. 
Over the next 12 months Measure P construction and renovation projects will include campus 
wide reconstruction projects, an access compliance project and infrastructure upgrades.
Items that are of concern to the District, and are being addressed, are related to escalating costs 
for Health and Welfare Benefits and the Affordable Care Act (ACA), and future funding of 
CalPERS and CalSTRS pension obligations. The District has been meeting with its Benefits 
Committee on plan design changes to ensure continued coverage while ensuring cost reduction. 
We have also worked with our third party benefits administrator on potential impacts related to 
the ACA and any changes that must be addressed prior to the law’s impact.

Despite the challenges facing the District, student enrollment continues to be strong. The District 
continues to be recognized for achievements on the Federal and State level. Further, the 
economic outlook at the State continues to be cautiously positive and reflect steady growth.

An analysis of the adopted and final expense budget amounts shows that the District has been 
successful at budgeting expenses appropriately and working within the defined general fund 
budgeted dollar amounts.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, students, and 
investors and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to show the 
District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need 
any additional financial information, contact the District at: Pasadena Area Community College 
District, 1570 East Colorado Boulevard, Pasadena, California, 91106-2003 or call (626) 585­
7170.

-vii-
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,502,134
Accounts receivable, net 11,434,377
Due from auxiliary 383,879
Inventory 826,476
Prepaid expenses  2,350,051

Total Current Assets 93,496,917

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,546,808
Land 10,396,408
Construction in progress 2,524,639
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 196,533,339

Total Non-Current Assets 225,001,194

Total Assets 318,498,111

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding 3,308,873
Deferred outflows - pensions 15,034,977

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 18,343,850

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 336,841,961
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 5,721,709
Accrued liabilities 7,995,052
Accrued interest payable 517,741
Unearned revenue 19,468,364
Compensated Absences - current portion 1,607,756
Estimated liability for open claims and IBNR's 5,162,603
Load banking 729,312
General obligation bonds payable - current portion 4,835,451
Capital leases - current portion 1,699,171
Supplemental employee retirement plan - current portion  996,077

Total Current Liabilities 48,733,236

Total Non-Current Liabilities 218,477,107

Total Liabilities 267,210,343

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows - pensions 11,304,696

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 120,312,996
Restricted for:

Capital projects 6,051,833
Debt service 8,233,138
Scholarship and loans 737,533
Other special purposes 1,504,442

Unrestricted (78,513,020)
Total Net Position 58,326,922

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $ 336,841,961



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Operating Revenues
Tuition and fees (gross) $ 41,113,975
Less: Scholarship discounts and allowances (17,376,850)

Net tuition and fees 23,737,125
Grants and contracts, non-capital:

Federal 41,328,485
State 15,991,883
Local 1,090,517

Auxiliary enterprise sales and charges  4,926,379
Total Operating Revenues 87,074,389

Operating Expenses
Salaries 104,119,539
Employee benefits 31,177,080
Supplies, materials, and other operating expenses and services 35,947,223
Financial aid 37,992,276
Utilities 3,257,124
Depreciation  9,770,193

Total Operating Expenses 222,263,435

Operating Loss (135,189,046)

Non-Operating Revenues
State apportionments, non-capital 84,704,169
Local property taxes 34,430,227
States taxes and other revenue 24,211,582
Interest and investment income, non-capital  399,274

Total Non-Operating Revenues 143,745,252

Income Before Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains and Losses  8,556,206
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
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See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Other Revenues, (Expenses), Gains and (Losses)
Loss on disposal, net (13,229)
Investment expense, capital 137,287
Other non-operating revenues 851,137
Interest expense on capital asset-related debt (3,427,723)

Total Other Revenues, (Expenses), Gains and (Losses) (2,452,528)

Increase in Net Position 6,103,678

Net Position, Beginning of Year 52,223,244

Net Position, End of Year $ 58,326,922



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Tuition and fees $ 24,508,184
Federal grants and contracts 41,998,677
State grants and contracts 20,296,021
Local grants and contracts 846,686
Sales 4,920,116
Payments to suppliers (36,988,197)
Payments to/on-behalf of employees (136,215,804)
Payments to/on-behalf of students (38,227,567)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (118,861,884)

Cash Flow's From Non-Capital Financing Activities
State apportionments and receipts 86,170,942
Property taxes 34,430,227
Grants and gifts for other than capital purposes 23,454,960
Interfund borrowing from fiduciary fund  (167,016)

Net cash provided (used) by non- capital financing activities 143,889,113

Cash Flow's From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases and sale of capital assets (4,354,780)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2,837
Interest on capital investments 168,245
Local revenue from capital purposes 509,136
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (9,455,421)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and financing activities (13,129,983)

Cash Flow's from Investing Activities
Interest on investments  396,598

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ______ 396,598

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,293,844

Cash Balance - Beginning of Year 81,755,098

Cash Balance - End of Year $ 94,048,942



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO 
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Used by Operating Activities

Operating loss (135,189,046)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 
used by operating activities:

Deferred outflows - pensions (7,430,289)
Deferred inflows - pensions (14,109,946)
Depreciation expense 9,770,193
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net 81,016
Inventory 66,363
Prepaid expense 37,089
Accounts payable 871,318
Accrued liabilities 500,294
Unearned revenue 3,368,710
Load banking (44,630)
Compensated absences 175,724
Estimated liability for open claims and IBNR's 713,603
Post-employment retiree benefits 1,875,641
Supplemental employee retirement plan, net (2,340,767)
N et pension liability 22,792,843

Net cash used by operating activities (118,861,884)

Breakdown of ending cash balance:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 78,502,134
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15,546,808

Total $ 94,048,942

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
-7-



STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A s s e t s

Associated 
Student Body 

Fund
Trust and Agency 

Fund

Cash and cash equivalents $ 217,450 $ 1,223,235
Investments 120,753 1,101,275
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 4,796 -

T o ta l A s s e t s 342,999 2,324,510

L ia b ilities

Accounts payable 81,498
Amounts held in trust 3,978 2,324,510

T o ta l L ia b ilities 85,476 2,324,510

N e t  P o s it io n

Unrestricted 257,523 -

T o ta l N e t  P o s it io n $ 257,523 $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Additions

Associated 
Student Body 

Fund

Interest $ 82
Other local sources 182,836

Total Additions 182,918

Deductions
Supplies, materials, and other operating expenses and services 287,830
Depreciation 4,314

Total Liabilities 292,144

Decrease in net position (109,226)

Net Position, Beginning of Year 366,749

Net Position, End of Year $ 257,523

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity

The District is the level of government primarily accountable for activities related to public 
education. The governing authority consists of elected officials who, together, constitute the 
Board of Trustees.

The District considered its financial and operational relationships with potential component units 
under the reporting entity definition of GASB. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including 
another organization in the District’s reporting entity for financial reports is the ability of the 
District’s elected officials to exercise oversight responsibility over such agencies. Oversight 
responsibility implies that one entity is dependent on another and a financial benefit or burden 
relationship is present and that the dependent unit should be reported as part of the other.

Oversight responsibility is derived from the District’s power and includes, but is not limited to: 
financial interdependency; selection of governing authority; designation of management; ability 
to significantly influence operations; and accountability for fiscal matters.

Due to the nature and significance of their relationship with the District, including ongoing 
financial support of the District or its other component units, certain organizations warrant 
inclusion as part of the financial reporting entity. A legally separate, tax-exempt organization 
should be reported as a component unit of the District if all of the following criteria are met:

• The economic resources received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost 
entirely for the direct benefit of the District, its component units, or its constituents.

• The District, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a 
majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate organization.

• The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the District, or its 
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the 
District.

Based upon the application of the criteria listed above, the following potential component unit 
has been excluded from the District’s reporting entity:

The Pasadena City College Foundation: The Foundation is a separate not-for-profit 
corporation created for the benefit of the District and its students and organized for educational 
purposes. The Foundation is not included as a component unit because the third criterion was not 
met; the economic resources received and held by the Foundation are not significant to the 
District. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Foundation expended amounts on-behalf 
of the District for scholarships and campus projects. To assist the Foundation in carrying out its 
purpose, the District provides administrative services to the Foundation. The District pays 
salaries and benefits of the executive director and accountant. In addition, working space for
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

employees who perform administrative services for the Foundation is provided by the District at 
no charge. Separate financial statements for the Foundation may be obtained through the District.

Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). The financial statement presentation required by GASB provides a comprehensive, 
entity-wide perspective of the District’s financial activities. The entity-wide perspective replaces 
the fund-group perspective previously required. Fiduciary activities, with the exception of the 
Student Financial Aid Fund and the Retiree Benefits Fund, are excluded from the basic financial 
statements.

The District operates a Warrant Pass-Through agency fund as a holding account for amounts 
collected from employees for Federal taxes, state taxes and other contributions. The District had 
cash in the County Treasury amounting to $(1,515,482) on June 30, 2016, which represents a 
prepayment of withholdings payable. The Warrant Pass-Through Fund is not reported in the 
basic financial statements.

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of 
measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

For financial reporting purposes, the District is considered a special-purpose government 
engaged in business-type activities. Accordingly, the District’s basic financial statements have 
been presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are 
recorded when an obligation has been incurred. All significant intra-agency transactions have 
been eliminated.

For internal accounting purposes, the budgetary and financial accounts of the District have been 
recorded and maintained in accordance with the Chancellor’s Office of the California 
Community College’s Budget and Accounting Manual.

To ensure compliance with the California Education Code, the financial resources of the District 
are divided into separate funds for which separate accounts are maintained for recording cash, 
other resources and all related liabilities, obligations and equities.

By state law, the District's Governing Board must approve a budget no later than September 15.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A public hearing must be conducted to receive comments prior to adoption. The District's 
Governing Board satisfied these requirements. Budgets for all governmental funds were adopted 
on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

These budgets are revised by the District's Governing Board during the year to give 
consideration to unanticipated income and expenditures. Formal budgetary integration was 
employed as a management control device during the year for all budgeted funds. Expenditures 
cannot legally exceed appropriations by major object account.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents, are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and 
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. Cash in the County Treasury is recorded at cost, which approximates fair value, in 
accordance with the requirements of GASB.

Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from the Federal government, state and 
local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable 
expenditures made pursuant to the District’s grant and contracts. Material receivables are 
considered fully collectible. The District recognized for budgetary and financial reporting 
purposes any amount of state appropriations deferred from the current fiscal year and 
appropriated from the subsequent fiscal year for payment of current year costs as a receivable in 
the current year.

Accounts receivable from students for tuition and fees is recorded net of a provision for 
uncollectable amounts.

Inventories

Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on an average basis and are expensed 
when used. Inventory consists of items held for resale in the bookstore and expendable 
instructional, custodial, health and other supplies held for consumption.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for goods or services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2016, 
are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid 
amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year 
in which goods or services are consumed.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are those amounts designated for acquisition or construction 
of non-current assets or that are segregated for the liquidation of long-term debt.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition. Donated capital assets are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. For equipment, the District’s capitalization 
policy includes all items with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greater 
than one year. Buildings as well as renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land 
improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are 
capitalized.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that does not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend the asset's life is recorded in operating expense in the year in which the 
expense was incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method with a half-year 
convention over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally 50 years for buildings and 
building and land improvements, 20 years for site improvements, 5 to 15 years for equipment.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until 
then. The District has the following deferred outflows:

Deferred Charge on Refunding: A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in 
the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

Deferred Outflows o f Resources - Pensions: Deferred outflows of resources represent a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as 
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The deferred outflows of resources 
related to the net pension obligation resulted from District contributions to employee pension 
plans subsequent to the measurement date of the actuarial valuations for the pension plans and 
the difference between actual and expected experience. The deferred outflows related to the net 
pension obligation will be deferred and amortized over the estimated average remaining service 
lifetime of plan participants (EARSL) over closed periods. The EARSL is 7 years for CalSTRS 
and 3.9 years for CalPERS. The first year of amortization is recognized in pension expense in the 
year the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are deferred and will be amortized over the 
remaining periods.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Accounts payable consists of amounts due to vendors for goods and services received prior to 
June 30. Accrued liabilities consist of salaries and benefits payable.

Unearned Revenue

Cash received for Federal and state special projects, and programs is recognized as revenue to 
the extent that qualified expenditures have been incurred. Unearned revenue is recorded to the 
extent cash received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualified expenditures. Unearned 
revenue also includes summer enrollment fees received but not earned.

Compensated Absences and Load Banking

In accordance with GASB, accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognized as a 
liability in the statement of net position when incurred. The entire compensated absences liability 
is accrued when incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

The District has accrued a liability for the amounts attributable to load banking. Load banking 
hours consist of hours worked by instructors in excess of a full-time load for which they may 
carryover for future paid time off.

Sick leave benefits are accumulated without limit for each employee. The employees do not gain 
a vested right to accumulated sick leave; therefore, accumulated employee sick leave benefits are 
not recognized as a liability of the District. The District's policy is to record sick leave as an 
operating expense in the period taken; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable 
service period for calculation of retirement benefits when the employee retires.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS) plan for schools (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the 
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by 
CalSTRS and CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Member contributions are recognized in the period in which they are earned. Investments are 
reported at fair value.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets by the District that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. The deferred inflow of resources related to the net 
pension obligation results from the difference between the estimated and actual return on pension 
plan investments, change in actuary assumptions, and the change in the District’s proportionate 
share of pension contributions. These amounts are deferred and amortized.

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets: Represents the District’s total investment in capital assets, net 
of outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets. To the extent debt has been 
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component 
of invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted Net Position — Expendable: Restricted expendable net position includes resources in 
which the District is legally or contractually obligated to spend resources in accordance with 
restrictions imposed by external third parties or by enabling legislation adopted by the District. 
The District first applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted net position is available.

Restricted Net Position — Nonexpendable: Nonexpendable restricted net position consists of 
endowment and similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated that 
the principal be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing 
present and future income. The District had no restricted net position -  nonexpendable.

Unrestricted Net Position: Unrestricted net position represents resources available to be used for 
transactions relating to the general operations of the District, and may be used at the discretion of 
the governing board, as designated, to meet current expenses for specific future purposes.

State Apportionments

Certain current year apportionments from the state are based upon various financial and 
statistical information of the previous year. Any prior year corrections due to the recalculation in 
February of 2017 will be recorded in the year computed by the State.

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are 
payable in two installments on November 1 and February 1. Unsecured property taxes are 
payable in one installment on or before August 31.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Real and personal property tax revenues are reported in the same manner in which the County 
auditor records and reports actual property tax receipts to the Department of Education. This is 
generally on a cash basis. A receivable has not been accrued in these financial statements 
because it is not material. Property taxes for debt service purposes have been accrued in the basic 
financial statements.

Classification of Revenues

The District has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according to 
the following criteria:

Operating Revenues: Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of 
exchange transactions, such as student fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, and 
Federal and most state and local grants and contracts.

Nonoperating Revenues: Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics 
of nonexchange transactions, such as State apportionments, taxes, and other revenue sources that 
are defined as nonoperating revenues by GASB.

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of 
scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for 
goods and services provided by the District, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third 
parties making payments on the students’ behalf. Certain governmental grants, such as Pell 
grants, and other Federal, state or nongovernmental programs, are recorded as operating 
revenues in the District’s financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs 
are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the District has recorded a 
scholarship discount and allowance.

Interest Capitalization

Interest costs are capitalized as part of the historical cost of acquiring certain assets. To qualify 
for interest capitalization, assets must require a period of time before they are ready for their 
intended purpose. Interest earned on proceeds of the District’s general obligation bonds restricted 
to the acquisition of qualifying assets is offset against interest costs in determining the amount to 
be capitalized. For the year ended June 30, 2016, no interest was capitalized.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from 
those estimates.

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not 
be returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk. As of June 30, 
2016, $3,473,110 of the District’s bank balance of $3,976,467 was exposed to credit risk as 
presented herein.

District's Bank Balance June 30, 2016
Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 3,473,110
Total $ 3,473,110

Cash in County

In accordance with The Budget and Accounting Manual, the District maintains substantially all 
of its cash in the Los Angeles County Treasury as part of the common investment pool. The 
District is considered an involuntary participant in the investment pool. These pooled funds are 
recorded at amortized cost which approximates fair value. Fair value of the pooled investments 
at June 30, 2016 is measured at 100.1168% of amortized cost. The District’s deposits in the fund 
are considered to be highly liquid.

The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code 
Sections 53534, 53601, 53635 and 53648. The county is restricted to invest in time deposits, 
U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s 
investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and 
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The funds maintained by the county are either 
secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized. The county investment pool is not 
required to be rated. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any 
investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The county investment pool is not registered as an investment company with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) nor is it an SEC Rule 2a7-like pool. California Government Code 
statutes and the County Board of Supervisors set forth the various investment policies that the 
Country Treasurer follow. The method used to determine the value of the participant’s equity 
withdrawn is based on the book value, which is amortized cost, of the participant’s percentage 
participation on the date of such withdrawals.

The pool sponsor’s annual financial report may be obtained from the Los Angeles County Public 
Affairs Office, Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration, 500 W. Temple St, Room 358, Los 
Angeles, CA 90012.

Investments

Policies

Under provisions of California Government Code Sections 16430, 53601 and 53602 (and 
District Board Policy Section 6006), the District may invest in the following types of 
investments:

• State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
• Los Angeles County Investment Pools (OCIP)
• U.S. Treasury notes, bonds, bills or certificates of indebtedness
• U.S. Government Agency guaranteed instruments
• Fully insured or collateralized certificates of deposit
• Fully insured and collateralized credit union accounts

The District did not violate any provisions of the California Government Code during the year 
ended June 30, 2016.

Investments and investments with fiscal agent at June 30, 2016 are presented herein.

Investment Maturities Fair Value
Standard & 

Poor's Rating
Certificate of Deposit 1-5 years $ 1,004,974 Nonrated
Stocks 79,008 Nonrated
Mutual Funds 138,046 Nonrated
Total $ 1,222,028

The investments are carried at cost on the financial statements which approximates fair value. 
The District’s investments are categorized as Level 1 based on prices quoted in active markets 
for those securities.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Investment Valuation

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements 
are those that GASB require or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each 
reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation inputs used to 
measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant 
unobservable inputs.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market interest rates. The District does not have a formal investment 
policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses 
arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations. This is 
measured by assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized rating organization. U.S. 
government securities or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government are not 
considered to have credit risk exposure. The District follows Government Code to reduce 
exposure to investment credit risk. Information about the District’s investment ratings is 
provided herein.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer. Certificates of 
Deposits which are not rated, nor are required to be rated. Ratings for the District’s investments 
in stocks and mutual funds were not available.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District 
will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. 
Of the total investments, the District has a custodial credit risk exposure for the certificates of 
deposit and stocks as the related securities are uninsured and unregistered; mutual funds are not 
considered to have custodial credit risk. The District does not have a policy limiting the amount 
of securities that can be held by counterparties.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 consists of the amounts presented herein.

Accounts Receivable June 30, 2016
Federal and state $ 2,112,030
Miscellaneous 7,682,105
Tuition and fees, net of allowance for doubtful accounts ($1,317,496) 1,640,242
Total accounts receivable $ 11,434,377

NOTE 4: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transfers consist of operating transfers from funds receiving resources to funds through 
which the resources are to be expended. Interfund receivables and payables result when the 
interfund transfer is transacted after the close of the fiscal year. Interfund activity within the 
government funds has been eliminated in the basic financial statements.

NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION -  SCHEDULE OF CHANGES

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2016 is presented herein.

Balance 
July 1, 2015 Additions Retirements

Balance 
June 30, 2016

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 10,396,408 $ $ $ 10,396,408
Construction in progress 3,093,214 3,636,043 4,204,618 2,524,639

Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,489,622 3,636,043 4,204,618 12,921,047
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 274,457,980 3,560,378 278,018,358
Site improvements 22,003,495 644,240 22,647,735
Equipment 28,330,241 718,737 307,186 28,741,792

Total capital assets being depreciated 324,791,716 4,923,355 307,186 329,407,885
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (95,693,504) (7,065,017) (102,758,521)
Site improvements (12,275,294) (566,070) (12,841,364)
Equipment (15,426,675) (2,139,106) 291,120 (17,274,661)

Total accumulated depreciation (123,395,473) (9,770,193) 291,120 (132,874,546)
Depreciable assets, net 201,396,243 (4,846,838) 16,066 196,533,339

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 214,885,865 $ (1,210,795) $ 4,220,684 $ 209,454,386
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 6: LEASES 

Capital Leases

The District leases equipment valued at approximately $316,200 under agreements which 
provide for title to pass upon expiration of the lease period. Future minimum lease payments are 
presented herein.

Year Ending June 30, Lease Payment
2017 $ 65,096
2018 65,096
2019 32,451
2020 6,086
Total 168,729
Less amount representing interest (4,724)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 164,005

The District receives no sublease rental revenues nor pays contingent rentals for this equipment. 

Capital Leases -  Winthrop

On December 1, 2012 the District entered into a lease agreement with Winthrop Resources 
Corporation (Winthrop) to finance $8,399,044 over a period of five years for hardware, software 
and implementation services associated with the purchase and implementation of 
Ellucian/Banner and related hardware and network expansion costs. Lease schedules were 
prepared periodically by Winthrop to memorialize the actual equipment accepted for lease by 
Winthrop during the installation period. Each lease schedule shall contain a minimum of 25% of 
hardware costs and 65% of combined hardware cost and software/Ellucian agreement software 
cost. The lease rate is fixed at 2.284%. Equipment and software of totaling $7,873,957 has been 
purchased under the lease agreement. The principal is fully funded by the Debt Service Fund. 
Interest payments are funded each year by the General Fund. The repayment schedule as of June 
30, 2016 is presented herein.

Year Ending June 30, Lease Payment
2017 $ 1,664,736
2018 943,846
2019 104,915
Total 2,713,497
Less amount representing interest (42,141)
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 2,671,356

The District receives no sublease rental revenues nor pays contingent rentals for this equipment.
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Operating Leases

The District has entered into various operating lease agreements for the use of facilities and 
equipment with lease terms in excess of one year. Annual future minimum lease payments under 
these agreements are approximately $168,500 and extend through June 30, 2056.

Current year expenditures for operating leases is approximately $63,240 for copiers and 
$927,606 for lease of facilities. The District receives no sublease rental revenues nor pays 
contingent rentals for these properties.

NOTE 7: LONG-TERM DEBT -  SCHEDULE OF CHANGES

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2016 is presented herein.

Balance 
July 1, 2015 Additions Reductions

Balance 
June 30, 2016

Amount Due in 
One Year

Capital leases $ 231,270 $ $ 67,265 $ 164,005 $ 63,240
Capital leases - Winthrop 4,267,137 - 1,595,781 2,671,356 1,635,931

4,498,407 - 1,663,046 2,835,361 1,699,171

General obligation bonds 91,620,000 33,995,000 40,985,000 84,630,000 4,000,000
Premium on general obligation bonds 6,416,812 6,606,055 2,700,896 10,321,971 835,451

Total general obligation bonds 98,036,812 40,601,055 43,685,896 94,951,971 4,835,451

Compensated absences 2,644,901 175,724 2,820,625 1,607,756
Supplemental employee retirement plan 5,540,432 2,340,767 3,199,665 996,077
Postemployment healthcare benefits 5,968,492 1,875,641 7,844,133
Net pension liability 93,170,964 22,792,843 - 115,963,807 -
Total $ 209,860,008 $ 65,445,263 $ 47,689,709 $ 227,615,562 $ 9,138,455

Liabilities are liquidated by the General Fund for governmental activities, including capital 
leases, compensated absences, net OPEB obligations and supplemental employee retirement 
plan. The capital lease principal balance with Winthrop is funded by the Debt Service Fund. 
General obligation bond liabilities are liquidated through property tax collections as administered 
by the County Controller’s office through the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.

NOTE 8: GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

On March 5, 2002, the District voters authorized the issuance and sale of general obligation 
bonds totaling $150,000,000. Proceeds from the sale of the bonds will be used to finance the 
construction, acquisition, furnishing and equipping District facilities.
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Series A general obligation bonds were sold in June 2003, for $33,000,000. The bonds were 
issued as Current Interest Bonds, and were fully redeemed as of June 30, 2014.

Series B and C general obligation bonds were sold in July 2006, for $87,657,774. The bonds 
were issued as Current Interest Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $65,000,000 (Series
B) and as Capital Appreciation Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $22,657,774 (Series
C) . Series C were fully redeemed as of June 30, 2015.

The bonds were issued to refund certain outstanding general obligation bonds (Series A Bonds) 
of the District and to pay for certain capital improvements.

The proceeds associated with the refunding were deposited in an escrow fund for future 
repayment. The refunded bonds are considered in substance defeased and are not recorded on the 
financial statements.

Series D and E general obligation bonds were sold in September 2009, for $52,000,000. Series D 
bonds are Current Interest Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of $26,705,000 and Series 
E bonds are Build America Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of $25,295,000.

The Series E bonds are designated as “Build America Bonds” under the provisions of the 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. With respect to the Series E bonds, the 
District expects to receive, on or about each bond payment date, a cash subsidy payment from 
the United States Treasury equal to the amount of interest determined at a federal tax credit rate 
under Section 54A(b)(3) of the tax code. The cash subsidy is deposited with the County and 
credited to the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund for debt service payments.

In April 2014, the District offered for sale $16,980,000 in general obligation refunding bonds. 
The bonds were issued to refund outstanding general obligation bonds Series B and to pay for 
certain capital improvements. The bonds were issued as current interest bonds.

In May 2016, the District offered for sale $33,995,000 in general obligation refunding bonds. 
The bonds were issued to refund outstanding general obligation bonds Series B and C and to pay 
for certain capital improvements. The bonds were issued as current interest bonds. The bonds 
contained an interest provision ranging from 2% to 5% depending on the maturity date of the 
bond. The refunding resulted in a cash flow savings of $8,318,042. The present value of the 
economic gain to the District and taxpayers is $7,157,913.

The proceeds associated with the 2014 and 2016 refundings were deposited in an escrow fund 
for future repayment. The refunded bonds are considered in substance defeased and are not 
recorded on the financial statements.
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Proceeds received in excess of debt are added to the maturity amount and amortized to interest 
expense over the life of the liability. The Series B, D, E, 2014 Refunding and 2016 Refunding 
bonds included a premium of $1,965,547, $1,839,608, $1,742,478, $2,608,686, and $6,606,055, 
respectively, which are amortized using the straight-line method. Amortization of $78,622, 
$73,584, $69,699, $200,669 and $68,814 was recognized during the 2015-16 year for Series B, 
D, E, 2014 Refunding and 2016 Refunding bonds, respectively. As a result of the 2016 
Refunding, $1,179,328 of the Series B premium and $1,030,180 of the Series D premium was 
written off during the 2015-16 fiscal year.

The difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount on refunded debt is 
deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the life of the new debt. 
Payments to the refunding escrow agent exceeded the existing carrying value of the refunded 
debt by $2,722,250. Amortization of $28,357 was recognized during the fiscal year 2015-16. 
Current year amortization of the deferred charge from the previous refunding was $153,745. As a 
result of the 2016 Refunding, $1,076,216 of the remaining deferred charge was written off 
during the 2015-16 fiscal year.

The outstanding general obligation bonded debt of the District at June 30, 2016 is presented 
herein.

G en era l O bliga tion  B onds

D a te  of 

Issu e

D a te  of 

M atu rity

In te re st 

R a te  %

A m ount o f  

O riginal Issu e

O utstand ing  

June 3 0 , 2 0 1 5

Issu e d  C u rren t 

Y ea r

R ed e em ed  

C u rren t Y e a r

O utstand ing  

June 3 0 , 2 0 1 6

S eries B 7 /1 2 /2 0 0 6 8 /1 /2 0 1 6 4 .5 -5 .2 5 $ 6 5 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 $ 2 5 ,3 8 5 ,0 0 0 $ $ 2 3 ,6 4 5 ,0 0 0 $ 1 ,7 4 0 ,0 0 0

S eries D 9 /3 0 /2 0 0 9 8 /1 /2 0 1 9 3 .0 -5 .0 2 6 ,7 0 5 ,0 0 0 2 4 ,1 6 0 ,0 0 0 1 7 ,2 9 0 ,0 0 0 6 ,8 7 0 ,0 0 0

S eries E 9 /3 0 /2 0 0 9 8 /1 /2 0 3 4 6 .5 -6 .7 2 5 ,2 9 5 ,0 0 0 2 5 ,2 9 5 ,0 0 0 2 5 ,2 9 5 ,0 0 0

2 0 1 4  R efunding 4 /2 /2 0 1 4 8 /1 /2 0 2 6 2 .0 -5 .0 1 6 ,9 8 0 ,0 0 0 1 6 ,7 8 0 ,0 0 0 5 0 ,0 0 0 1 6 ,7 3 0 ,0 0 0

2 0 1 6  R efunding 5 /1 2 /2 0 1 6 8 /1 /2 0 3 1 2 .0 -5 .0 - - 3 3 ,9 9 5 ,0 0 0 - 3 3 ,9 9 5 ,0 0 0

T o ta l $  1 3 3 ,9 8 0 ,0 0 0 $ 9 1 ,6 2 0 ,0 0 0 $ 3 3 ,9 9 5 ,0 0 0 $ 4 0 ,9 8 5 ,0 0 0 $ 8 4 ,6 3 0 ,0 0 0

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all general obligation bonds are presented 
herein.

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 4,000,000 $ 2,855,512 $ 6,855,512
2018 3,515,000 4,199,167 7,714,167
2019 3,685,000 4,034,242 7,719,242
2020 3,850,000 3,878,642 7,728,642
2021 3,705,000 3,671,717 7,376,717
2022-2026 21,270,000 15,576,059 36,846,059
2027-2031 27,785,000 9,309,511 37,094,511
2032-2035 16,820,000 1,996,204 18,816,204
Total $ 84,630,000 $ 45,521,054 $ 130,151,054
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Plan Description and Eligibility

The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (the Retiree Health 
Plan). The plan provides health and dental benefits to all full-time Faculty, Management and 
Classified employees who have reached age 55 and retire with at least 14 years of service, 
however, District-paid retiree benefits begin at age 55 and terminate on the June 30th for the 
fiscal year during which the retiree reaches age 65. Beyond this age, the District pays $1,440 
annually to assist retirees in obtaining Medicare Supplement coverage. Benefit provisions are 
established through negotiations between the District and the bargaining unions representing 
employees and are renegotiated each three-year bargaining period. The Retiree Health Plan does 
not issue a separate financial report.

Funding Policy

The District currently finances benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The District contributes 100 
percent of the cost of current year premiums for eligible retired plan members and their spouses 
as applicable. For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District contributed $1,151,533 to the plan 
and total member contributions were $1,081,724.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based 
on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty 
years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the 
year, the amount actually contributed, and changes in the OPEB obligation are presented herein.
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Participant Type:
Number of 

Participants
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits 41
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits -
Active plan members 682
Total 723

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
Balance 

June 30, 2016
Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 4,012,578
Interest on net OPEB obligation 268,582
Adjustment to ARC (172,262)
Annual OPEB cost 4,108,898
Contributions made, including implicit rate subsidy (2,233,257)
Change in net OPEB obligation 1,875,641
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 5,968,492

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 7,844,133

The District’s annual OBEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended 2014 through 2016 are presented herein.

Year Ending June 30,
Annual 

OPEB Cost

Percentage of 

Annual OPEB 
Cost

Contributed
Net OPEB 
Obligation

2016 $ 4,108,898 54.4% $ 7,844,133
2015 2,643,499 80.4% 5,968,492
2014 2,604,512 47.9% 5,449,988

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of February 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was unfunded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits as well as the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
was $31,552,333. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) 
was $64,968,110, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 48.57%. Although the 
plan has no segregated assets, the District maintains a retiree benefits fund to designate resources 
for retiree health care costs. At June 30, 2016, the fund’s designated balance was $15,169,173. 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing benefit plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost
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trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of 
postemployment healthcare benefits funding progress, presented as required supplementary 
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets, if any, is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions 
used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial 
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, if any, consistent with the long-term 
perspective of the calculations.

In the February 1, 2016 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 4.50 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses) based on an assumed long-term return on employer assets and the “Building Block 
Method” described in ASOP 27 Paragraph 3.6.2. The annual healthcare cost trend rate of 4 
percent was used along with 2.75 percent for both inflation and payroll increase. The UAAL is 
being amortized on a level percent, open 24 year amortization period. The remaining 
amortization period will expire on June 30, 2038.

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans 
maintained by agencies of the State of California. Academic employees are members of the 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members 
of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), and part-time, seasonal and 
temporary employees and employees not covered by CalSTRS or CalPERS are members of the 
Accumulated Program for part-time and Limited Services Employees (APPLE) plan.

As of June 30, 2016, the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension 
expense, and deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources for each of the 
retirement plans as presented herein.
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Pension Plan

Proportionate 
Share of Net 

Pension Liability

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Proportionate 
Share of Deferred 

Inflows of 
Resources

Proportionate 
Share of 

Pension Expense
CalSTRS (STRP) $ 82,135,280 $ 9,579,980 $ 8,067,860 $ 6,986,531
CalPERS (Schools Pool Plan) 33,828,527 5,454,997 3,236,836 3,780,572
Total $ 115,963,807 $ 15,034,977 $ 11,304,696 $ 10,767,103

The details of each plan are as follows:

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the State Teachers’ Retirement Plan (STRP) administered by the 
California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS). STRP is a cost-sharing multiple- 
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions are 
established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers’ Retirement 
Law.

Benefits Provided

The STRP provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits are 
based on members’ final compensation, age and years of service credit. Members hired on or 
before December 31, 2012, with five years of credited service are eligible for the normal 
retirement benefit at age 60. Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, with five years of 
credited service are eligible for the normal retirement benefit at age 62. The normal retirement 
benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each year of credited service. The STRP 
is comprised of four programs: Defined Benefit Program, Defined Benefit Supplement Program, 
Cash Balance Benefit Program and Replacement Benefits Program. The STRP holds assets for 
the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to members and beneficiaries of these programs. 
CalSTRS also uses plan assets to defray reasonable expenses of administering the STRP. 
Although CalSTRS is the administrator of the STRP, the state is the sponsor of the STRP and 
obligor of the trust. In addition, the state is both an employer and nonemployer contributing 
entity to the STRP.

The District contributes exclusively to the STRP Defined Benefit Program; thus, disclosures are 
not included for the other plans.

Summarized STRP provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are presented herein.
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STRP Provisions and Benefits STRP Defined Benefit Program and Supplement Program
Hire date On or Before December 31, 2012 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible 
compensation 2.0%-2.4% 2.0%-2.4%
Required employee contribution rate 9.20% 8.56%
Required employer contribution rate 10.73% 10.73%
Required state contribution rate 7.391% 7.391%

Contributions

Required member, District and State of California contribution rates are set by the California 
Legislature and Governor and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. The contributions rates are 
expressed as a level percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial method. The 
contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2016 are presented above and the 
total District contributions were $5,834,591.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount 
recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related state 
support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District is 
presented herein.

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Balance 

June 30, 2016
District proportionate share of net pension liability $ 82,135,280
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 43,440,392
Total $ 125,575,672

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The District’s proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to 
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the 
State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the District’s proportion was 0.1220%.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, pension expense of $6,986,531 and revenue of $3,647,519 for 
support provided by the state was recognized. At June 30, 2016, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are from the sources presented herein.
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Pension Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 5,834,591 $
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,372,500
Difference in proportion 3,745,389
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 6,695,360
Total $ 9,579,980 $ 8,067,860

The deferred outflows of resources resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2017. The remaining amounts will be amortized and recorded as a reduction in pension 
expense as presented herein.

Year Ending June 30, Amortization
2017 $ 1,278,359
2018 1,278,359
2019 1,278,359
2020 1,278,359
2021 (395,481)
2022 (395,484)
Total $ 4,322,471

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability for STRP was determined by applying update procedures to a financial 
reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to 
June 30, 2015. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 used the following 
methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions___________________________________________________
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Experience Study July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2010
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Discount Rate 7.60%
Investment Rate of Return 7.60%
Consumer Price Inflation 3.00%
Wage Growth 3.75%

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. 
These custom tables are based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a

-30-



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. The best estimate ranges were developed using capital market assumptions 
from CalSTRS general investment consultant. Based on the model for CalSTRS consulting 
actuary’s investment practice, a best estimate range was determined by assuming the portfolio is 
re-balanced annually and that the annual returns are lognormally distributed and independent 
from year to year to develop an expected percentiles for the long-term distribution of annualized 
returns. The assumed asset allocation is based on board policy for target asset allocation in effect 
on February 2, 2012, the date the current experience study was approved by the board. Best 
estimates of 10-year geometric real rates of return and the assumed asset allocation for each 
major asset class used as input to develop the actuarial investment rate of return are summarized 
in the following table:

Asset Class
Assumed Asset 

Allocation

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Global equity 47% 4.50%
Private equity 12% 6.20%
Real estate 15% 4.35%
Inflation sensitive 5% 3.20%
Fixed income 20% 0.20%
Cash/liquidity 1% 0.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.60%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and 
employers will be made at statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment 
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.60%) and 
assuming that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occurred midyear. 
Based on these assumptions, the STRP’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine total pension liability.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate is presented herein.
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Discount rate
Net Pension 

Liability
1% decrease (6.60%) $ 124,017,880
Current discount rate (7.60%) 82,135,280
1% increase (8.60%) 47,327,460

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the STRP’s plan fiduciary net position is available in a separate 
comprehensive annual financial report for CalSTRS. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial 
report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento CA 95826.

California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the Schools Pool Plan under the California 
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public 
employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS. The plan 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as 
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits 
are based on years of service credit, a benefit factor, and the member’s final compensation. 
Members hired on or before December 31, 2012, with five years of total service are eligible to 
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired on or after January 1, 2013, 
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced benefits. 
All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 5 years of service. The Basic 
Death Benefit is paid to any member’s beneficiary if the member dies while actively employed. 
An employee’s eligible survivor may receive the 1957 Survivor Benefit if the member dies while 
actively employed, is at least age 50 (or 52 for members hired on or after January 1, 2013), and 
has at least 5 years of credited service. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The CalPERS provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized herein.
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Provisions and Benefits School Employer Pool (CalPERS)
Hire date On or Before December 31, 2012 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age
Monthly benefits as a percentage of eligible

55 62

compensation 1.1%-2.5% 1.0%-2.5%
Required employee contribution rate 7.000% 6.000%
Required employer contribution rate 11.847% 11.847%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Total plan contributions 
are determined through the CalPERS annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially 
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by 
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 
The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and 
the contribution rate of employees. The contributions rates are expressed as percentage of annual 
payroll. The contribution rates for each plan for the year ended June 30, 2016 are as presented 
above and the total District contributions were $3,272,310.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2016, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate share of the 
CalPERS net pension liability totaling $33,828,527. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30, 2015. The total pension liability for CalPERS was determined by applying update 
procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2015. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. 
At June 30, 2015, the District’s proportion was 0.2295%.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, pension expense of $3,780,572 was recognized. At June 30, 
2016, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are 
from the sources presented herein.
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NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

Pension Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 3,272,310 $
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,933,350
Changes of assumptions 2,078,518
Difference in proportion 249,337
Net differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 1,158,318
Total $ 5,454,997 $ 3,236,836

The deferred outflows of resources resulting from District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2017. The remaining amounts will be amortized and recognized as a reduction in 
pension expense as presented herein.

Year Ending June 30, Amortization
2017 $ 810,113
2018 810,113
2019 822,915
2020 (1,388,992)
Total $ 1,054,149

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 
2015. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014 used the following methods 
and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Valuation Date June 30, 2014
Measurement Date June 30, 2015
Experience Study July 1, 1997 through June 30, 2011
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Discount Rate 7.65%
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%
Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Wage Growth 3.00%

Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS 
experience study adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the post-retirement mortality 
rates, those revised rates include five years of projected ongoing mortality improvement using 
Scale AA published by the Society of Actuaries.
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In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term 
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using 
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over 
the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the 
nearest one quarter of one percent. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized herein.

Asset Class
Assumed Asset 

Allocation

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Global equity 51% 5.71%
Global debt securities 19% 2.43%
Private equity 10% 6.95%
Real estate 12% 5.13%
Inflation assets 6% 3.36%
Liquidity 2% -1.05%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from plan members and 
employers will be made at statutory contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the School 
Employer Pool fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of 
return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine total pension 
liability.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the current 
discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percent lower or higher than the current rate is presented herein.

Discount rate
Net Pension 

Liability
1% decrease (6.65%) $ 55,058,745
Current discount rate (7.65%) 33,828,527
1% increase (8.65%) 16,174,181

-35-



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 10: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about CalPERS School Employer plan fiduciary net position is available in 
a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report 
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

Accumulation Program for Part-Time and Limited Services Employees (APPLE)

Plan Description

The Accumulation Program for Part-Time and Limited Service Employees (APPLE) is a defined 
contribution plan qualifying under Section 401(a) and 501 of the Internal Revenue Code. This 
plan covers part-time, seasonal and temporary employees and employees not covered by Section 
3121(b)(7)(F) of the Internal Revenue Code. The benefit provisions and contribution 
requirements of plan members and the District are established and may be amended by APPLE 
Administration Committee.

Funding Policy

Contributions of 3.75% of covered compensation of eligible employees are made by the 
employee. Total District contributions were made in the amount of $560,476 during the fiscal 
year. The total amount of covered compensation was $14,946,027. Total contributions made are 
100% of the amount of contributions required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Total 
required contribution is 7.5%; the District contributes 3.75% in addition to the employees’ 
contribution of 3.75%.

NOTE 11: SUPPLEMENTAL EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

The District has Supplemental Employee Retirement Plans for faculty and management, 
confidential and non-management employees. The accumulated future liability for the District at 
June 30, 2016 is $3,199,665, and has been reflected in these financial statements.

Plans approved in 2011-12 by the Board of Trustees were paid off during the fiscal year 2015­
16. Plans approved in 2012-13, 2013-14, and 2014-15 by the Board of Trustees remain 
outstanding as of June 30, 2016.

A total of 81 faculty, 19 management/confidential, and 58 non-management employees 
participate in the remaining plans. The total cost to the District for the remaining plans is 
approximately $4.98 million.
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NOTE 12: INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters; and medical 
claims. During the fiscal year, the District maintained an Internal Service Fund to account for 
and finance its uninsured risks of loss. The Self Insurance Fund provides coverage for up to a 
maximum of $500,000 for each workers’ compensation claim, $50,000 for each general liability 
claim and $25,000 for each property damage claim. The District participates in a JPA to provide 
excess insurance coverage above the self-insured retention level for workers’ compensation 
claims. Settled claims have not exceeded the coverage provided by the JPA in any of the past 
three fiscal years.

Funding of the Internal Service Fund is based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior 
and current year claims. Workers’ Compensation claims are charged to the respective funds 
which generate the liability and the Property and Liability claims are paid by the General Fund.

At June 30, 2016, the District accrued the claims liability in accordance with GASB Statement 
No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance 
of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the 
date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The 
present value of the liability is estimated at $5,162,603. Changes in the reported liability are 
presented herein.

Reported Liability
Beginning Fiscal 
Year Liability

Current Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates Claim Payments

Ending Fiscal 
Year Liability

Property and liability $ 225,000 $ 1,151,533 $ 1,151,533 $ 225,000
Worker's compensation 4,224,000 1,936,439 1,222,836 4,937,603

$ 4,449,000 $ 3,087,972 $ 2,374,369 $ 5,162,603

NOTE 13: JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

The District participates in two joint powers agreement (JPA) entities: the Statewide Association 
of Community Colleges (SWACC), and the Schools Alliance for Workers’ Compensation 
Excess Group Purchase (sAw CX Il).

SWACC provides liability and property insurance for forty-seven community colleges. SWACC 
is governed by a Board comprised of a member of each of the participating districts. The board 
controls the operations of SWACC, including selection of management and approval of members 
beyond their representation on the Board. Each member shares surpluses and deficits 
proportionately to its participation in SWACC.
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NOTE 13: JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS

SAWCX II provides reinsurance for workers’ compensation claims above the District’s self­
insured limit.

Each JPA is governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member district. Each 
governing board controls the operations of its JPA independent of any influence by the District 
beyond the District’s representation on the governing boards.

Each JPA is independently accountable for its fiscal matters. Budgets are not subject to any 
approval other than that of the respective governing boards. Member districts share surpluses and 
deficits proportionately to their participation in the JPA.

The relationships between the District and the JPAs are such that no JPA is a component unit of 
the District for financial reporting purposes.

Condensed financial information for the year ended June 30, 2016 is presented herein.

JPA Condensed Financial Information

SWACC
6/30/16

(Audited)

SAWCX II 
6/30/15 

(Audited)
Total assets $ 53,650,572 $ 15,403,343
Total liabilities 25,243,178 14,035,650
Fund balance $ 28,407,394 $ 1,367,693
Total revenues 19,541,575 1,726,177
Total expenditures 21,650,874 1,586,030
Net increase/(decrease) $ (2,109,299) $ 140,147

NOTE 14: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE

Operating expenses are reported by natural classification in the statement of revenues, expenses 
and change in net position. A schedule of expenses by function is presented herein.
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NOTE 14: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE

F u n c tio n a l E x p e n se S alaries E m p lo y e e  B enefits

S upp lies , m ateria ls, 

a n d  o th e r  o p era tin g  

e x p e n se s  a n d  

se rv ices F in an cia l A id D e p re c ia tio n T o ta l

In stru ctio n al activities $  5 8 ,7 2 9 ,5 0 3 $  1 4 ,4 4 1 ,0 3 3 $  2 ,4 4 2 ,3 2 6 $ $  $ 7 5 ,6 1 2 ,8 6 2

A c a d e m ic  su p p o rt 9 ,1 4 1 ,3 5 1 2 ,8 1 9 ,3 1 0 1 ,3 1 5 ,1 1 4 1 3 ,2 7 5 ,7 7 5

S tu d e n t  s e rv ices 1 4 ,8 7 4 ,0 7 6 4 ,1 0 1 ,0 0 3 6 ,6 3 3 ,7 1 1 2 5 ,6 0 8 ,7 9 0

O p e ra tio n  &  m ain ten an ce  o f  p lan t 4 ,8 7 5 ,8 0 3 1 ,9 0 6 ,1 9 2 3 ,2 1 6 ,3 6 5 9 ,9 9 8 ,3 6 0

In stru ctio n al s u p p o r t  se rv ic es 1 2 ,3 7 4 ,7 9 2 6 ,8 9 7 ,9 6 6 8 ,3 0 9 ,2 2 2 2 7 ,5 8 1 ,9 8 0

C om m unity  se rv ic es  &  e c o n o m ic  d e v e lo p m e n t 6 4 9 ,4 1 5 2 1 3 ,2 3 4 2 2 3 ,5 3 1 1 ,0 8 6 ,1 8 0

A ncillary  se rv ic e s  &  auxiliary  o p e ra tio n s 3 ,4 7 4 ,5 9 9 7 9 8 ,3 4 2 3 ,3 3 9 ,3 9 5 7 ,6 1 2 ,3 3 6

P h y s ica l p ro p e r ty  &  re la te d  acqu isitions 6 ,4 9 5 ,0 3 5 6 ,4 9 5 ,0 3 5

L o n g -T e rm  D e b t  &  O th e r  F inancing 7 ,2 2 9 ,6 4 8 7 ,2 2 9 ,6 4 8

S tu d e n t A id 3 7 ,9 9 2 ,2 7 6 3 7 ,9 9 2 ,2 7 6

D e p re c ia tio n  e x p e n se - - - - 9 ,7 7 0 ,1 9 3 9 ,7 7 0 ,1 9 3

Total $  1 0 4 ,1 1 9 ,5 3 9 $  3 1 ,1 7 7 ,0 8 0 $  3 9 ,2 0 4 ,3 4 7 $  3 7 ,9 9 2 ,2 7 6 $  9 ,7 7 0 ,1 9 3  $ 2 2 2 ,2 6 3 ,4 3 5

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation

The District is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of 
business. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the District’s financial statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards, and Grants

The District has received state and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review 
and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure 
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursement will not 
be material.

Purchase Commitments

As of June 30, 2016, the District was committed under various capital expenditure purchase 
agreements for construction and modernization projects totaling approximately $2,456,984. 
Projects will be funded through bond proceeds, state funds and general funds.

NOTE 16: GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENTS 
ISSUED, NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued pronouncements prior to 
June 30, 2016, that have effective dates that may impact future financial presentations; however, 
the impact of the implementation of each of the statements below to the District’s financial 
statements has not been assessed at this time.
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NOTE 16: GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENTS 
ISSUED, NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Statement No. 73 -  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope o f GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions 
o f GASB Statements 67 and 68

This statement was issued in June 2015 and extends the approach to accounting and financial 
reporting established in Statement No. 68 to all pensions, with modifications as necessary to 
reflect that for accounting and financial reporting purposes, any assets accumulated for pensions 
that are provided through pension plans that are not administered through trusts that meet the 
criteria specified in Statement No. 68 should not be considered pension plan assets The statement 
is effective for the fiscal year 2015-16 except those provisions that address employers and 
governmental non-employer contributing entities for pensions that are not within the scope of 
Statement No. 68, which are effective for the fiscal year 2016-17.

Statement No. 74 -  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans

This statement was issued in June 2015 and establishes standards of financial reporting for 
defined benefit OPEB plans and defined contribution OPEB plans. This statement is closely 
related in some areas to Statement No. 75. The statement is effective for the fiscal year 2016-17.

Statement No. 75 -  Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions

This statement was issued in June 2015 and establishes standards for governmental employer 
recognition, measurement, and presentation of information about OPEB. The statement also 
establishes requirements for reporting information about financial support provided by certain 
non-employer entities for OPEB that is provided to the employees of other entities. This 
statement is closely related in some areas to Statement No. 74. The statement is effective for the 
fiscal year 2017-18.

GASB Statement No. 77 -  Tax Abatement Disclosures

This statement was issued in August 2015 and establishes financial reporting standards for tax 
abatement agreements entered into by state and local governments. The statement is effective for 
the fiscal year 2016-17
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NOTE 16: GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD STATEMENTS 
ISSUED, NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Statement No. 82 -  P en sio n  Issu es  — an  a m en d m en t o f  G A S B  S ta tem en ts  N o. 67, N o. 68 a n d
N o. 73

This statement was issued in March 2016 and establishes guidance in order to address certain 
issues that have been raised with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension 
Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB 
Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68. 
Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related 
measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the 
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial 
reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy 
employee (plan member) contribution requirements. The requirement of this Statement are 
effective for the fiscal year 2016-17.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE 
BENEFITS FUNDING PROGRESS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial Value 
of Assets (AVA)

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (Unit Credit 

Cost Method) 
(AAL)

Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability 

(UAAL)
Funding
Ratio

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered Payroll Covered Payroll

2/1/2016 $ 31,552,333 $ 31,552,333 0% $ 64,968,110 48.57%
2/1/2014 - 20,286,529 20,286,529 0% 59,070,408 34.34%
12/1/2011 - 15,674,507 15,674,507 0% 51,822,405 30.25%

Although the plan has no segregated assets, the District does maintain a retiree benefits fund to designate resources for future 
retiree health care costs. At June 30, 2016, the fund's designated ending balance was $15,169,173

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE 
SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

State Teachers' Retirement Plan 2015 2016

District's proportion of the net pension liability (assets) 0.1160% 0.1220%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 67,786,920 $ 82,135,280
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) associated with the District 40,933,080 43,440,392
Total $ 108,720,000 $ 125,575,672

District's covered-employee payroll $ 51,472,000 $ 54,700,000

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 131.70% 150.16%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 77.00% 74.00%

California Public Employees' Retirement Plan 2015 2016

District's proportion of the net pension liability (assets) 0.2236% 0.2295%

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 25,384,044 $ 33,828,527

District's covered-employee payroll $ 23,477,000 $ 23,300,000

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its 
covered-employee payroll 108.12% 145.19%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 83.37% 79.43%

Note: Accounting standards require presentation of 10 years of information. However, the information in this schedule is not 
required to be presented retroactively. Years will be added to this schedule as future data becomes available.

The amounts for covered payroll are reported as of the previous fiscal year to align with the measurement date of the net 
pension liability.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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State Teachers' Retirement Plan 2015 2016

Contractually required contribution $ 4,859,625 $ 5,834,591
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 4,859,625 5,834,591
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -

District's covered-employee payroll $ 53,590,000 $ 54,400,000

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.07% 10.73%

California Public Employees' Retirement Plan 2015 2016

Contractually required contribution $ 2,745,063 $ 3,272,310
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 2,745,063 3,272,310
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -

District's covered-employee payroll $ 24,691,000 $ 29,300,000

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 11.12% 11.17%

Note: Accounting standards require presentation of 10 years of information. However, the information in this schedule is not 
required to be presented retroactively. Years will be added to this schedule as future data becomes available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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NOTE 1: PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Postemployment Healthcare Benefits Funding Progress

This schedule is prepared to show information for the three most recent actuarial valuations in 
accordance with Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. The schedule is intended to show trends about the funding progress of the District’s 
actuarially determined liability for postemployment benefits other than pensions.

Schedules of District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability -  STRP and PERS

The schedule presents information on the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability, the plans’ fiduciary net position and, when applicable, the State’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability associated with the District. In the future, as data becomes available, 10 
years of information will be presented.

Schedules of District Contributions -  STRP and PERS

The schedule presents information on the District’s required contribution, the amounts actually 
contributed and any excess or deficiency related to the required contribution. In the future, as 
data becomes available, 10 years of information will be presented.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

HISTORY AND ORGANIZATION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

The District was established in 1967 and serves communities in the Los Angeles County. There 
were no exterior boundary changes during the current year. The District operates one college.

The Board of Trustees and the District Executive Officers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 
were as follows:

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Member Office Term Expires
Linda S. Wah President December 2017
Ross Selvidge, PhD Vice President December 2017
Anthony R. Fellow PhD Clerk December 2017
Berlinda Brown Member December 2017
Hoyt R. Hilsman Member December 2019
John H. Martin Member December 2019
James A. Osterling Member December 2019
Kelly Banh Student Trustee June 2016

DISTRICT EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Rajen Vurdien PhD Superintendent/President and Board of Trustees Secretary
Robert H. Bell, Ed.D. Assistant Superintendent/Senior Vice President, Non-Credit

and Offsite Campuses
Robert B. Miller, DPA Assistant Superintendent/Senior Vice President Business and

College Services (through April 2016)
Richard S. Storti, Ed.D. Assistant Superintendent/Vice President Business and

Administrative Services (beginning July 2016)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
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Program Name
Federal Catalog 

Number

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number
Total Program 
Expenditures

U n ite d  S ta te s  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  E d u c a tio n

Direct:
Student Financial Aid Cluster:

Pell Grant 84.063 N/A $ 31,985,019
Pell Grant Administration Grant 84.063 N/A 46,055
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 84.007 N/A 422,867
Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Administration 84.007 N/A 54,306
Federal Family Education Loans(Direct Loans) 84.032 N/A 1,873,221
Direct Loans Plus 19,626
Federal Work-Study Program(5313 & 5314) 84.033 N/A 50,000
Federal Work-Study Program -On Campus 84.033 N/A 394,175
Federal Work-Study Program - Off Campus 84.033 N/A 41,040

Total Student Financial Aid Cluster 34,886,309

Pass-Through Program From California Department of Education:
TRIO Cluster:
TRIO - Upward Bound Classic 84.047A (1) 334,615
TRIO - Upward Bound Math and Science 84.047M (1) 289,322
TRIO - Student Support Services and Student Grants 84.042A (1) 299,237
TRIO - Talent Search 84.044A (1) 348,343
TRIO - Upward Bound Classic-Rosemead 84.044A (1) 269,111
TRIO - Upward Bound Math and Science-El Monte 84.044A (1) 299,441

Total TRIO Cluster 1,840,069

Direct:
HSI: Developing accessible intersegmental STEM pathway 

environmental sciences for underserved Hispanic students 84.031C N/A 856,266
Design Technology Pathway 84.031S N/A 739,553

Pass-Through the California State Chancellor's Office:
CTEA I-C 84.048 03579 592,301
CTE Transitions 84.048 03579 45,119

Pass-Through Program From California Department of Education: 
Workforce Investment Act: Adult Basic Education 84.002A 3905 263,947
ASE 84.002A 3913 171,614
EL Civics 84.002A 3926 30,265
XL for life: Transforming Developmental Education at PCC to 

Improve Hispanic Student Success
84.031S (1) 225,255

Pathways to Completion 84.031S (1) 236,853

Passed through the University Corporation at California State University Northridge
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 84.116F (1) 632

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
-49-
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

P r o g ra m  N a m e

F e d e r a l  C a ta lo g  

N u m b e r

P a s s -T h ro u g h  

E n tity  Iden tify in g  

N u m b e r

T o ta l  P r o g ra m  

E x p e n d itu re s

U n ite d  S ta te s  S m all B u s in e ss  A d m in istra tion

S m all B u s in e ss  D e v e lo p m e n t 5 9 .0 3 7 N /A 1 3 9 ,7 8 2

U n ite d  S ta te s  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  H e a lth  an d  H u m an  S e r v ic e s

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  C a lifo rn ia  S ta te  C h a n c e l lo r 's  O ffice  

F o s t e r  C a r e 9 3 .6 5 8 (1 ) 5 0 ,1 5 9

T e m p o ra ry  A s s is ta n c e  fo r  N e e d y  F a m ilie s  (T A N F ) 9 3 .5 5 8 (1 ) 7 3 ,4 4 0

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  C a lifo rn ia  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  E d u c a tio n  

C h ild  D e v e lo p m e n t - C C T R  (B a s e d  o f  A tte n d a n c e /E n ro llm e n t) 9 3 .5 7 5 0 0 0 3 2 4 3 4 ,3 0 9

C h ild  D e v e lo p m e n t - C S P P  (B a s e d  o f  A tte n d a n c e /E n ro llm e n t) 9 3 .5 9 6 0 0 0 3 2 1 6 2 ,3 6 2

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  S o c ia l  S e rv ic e s  

L o s  A n g e le s  C o u n ty  D P S S 9 3 .5 5 8 (1 ) 8 2 ,0 6 8

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  U n iv e rs ity  C o rp o ra t io n  a t  C a lifo rn ia  S ta te  U n iv e rs ity  N o r th r id g e  

B uild  P o d e r  9 3 .3 1 0 (1 ) 1 9 ,4 5 3

U n ite d  S ta te s  D e p a r tm e n t o f  A gricu ltu re

F o r e s t  R e s e rv e 1 0 .6 6 5 N /A 4 ,0 8 8

S u m m e r  F o o d  M a th  S c ie n c e  U p w a r d  B o u n d 1 0 .5 5 9 N /A 1 7 ,4 3 5

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  C a lifo rn ia  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  E d u c a tio n  

C h ild  &  A d u lt  C a r e  F o o d  P r o g ra m

C h ild  D e v e lo p m e n t - C S P P  (B a s e d  o f  A tte n d a n c e /E n ro llm e n t)

1 0 .5 5 8 A 3 2 7 8 - 1  A 4 6 ,9 4 9

U n ite d  S ta te s  D e p a r tm e n t o f  L a b o r

P a s s e d  th ro u g h  th e  C a lifo rn ia  D e p a r tm e n t  o f  E d u c a tio n

V e ts  to  N u r s e s  - F o o th i ll  W o r k f o r c e  In v e s tm e n t B o a r d  (W IA ) 1 7 .2 5 8 (1 ) 1 5 ,7 5 0

N a tio n a l S c ie n c e  F oun d ation

D ire c t:

C a r le to n  C o lle g e  In te g ra te 4 7 .0 7 6 N /A 8 ,8 9 5

C a r le to n  C o lle g e  In te g ra te  (P r io r  Y e a r ) 4 7 .0 7 6 N /A 7 ,7 0 4

T o ta l F e d e r a l P rogram s $  4 0 ,4 5 0 ,5 7 7

R eco n c ilia t io n  to  F e d e r a l R e v e n u e

T o ta l  f e d e ra l  p ro g r a m  e x p e n d itu re s $  4 0 ,4 5 0 ,5 7 7

R e v e n u e  in e x c e s s  o f  e x p e n d i tu re s  r e la te d  to  f e d e ra l  p ro g ra m :

B u ild  A m e r ic a  B o n d s 5 4 2 ,8 5 1

C T E A  I - C  p r io r  y e a r  a d ju s tm e n t 3 6 7 ,8 4 8

H IS : D e v e lo p in g  a c c e s s ib le  in te rs e g m e n ta l S T E M  p a th w a y 2 8

E x p e n d itu re s  in e x c e s s  o f  re v e n u e  r e la te d  to  f e d e ra l  p ro g ra m : 

P e r s o n a l  a n d  H o m e  C a r e  A id  T ra in in g  - P r o g ra m  C lo s e d ( 3 2 ,8 1 9 )

T o ta l F e d e r a l R e v e n u e $  4 1 ,3 2 8 ,4 8 5

(1 )  P a s s -T h ro u g h  E n tity  Id en tify in g  N u m b e r  n o t  re a d ily  a v a ilab le  o r  n o t  a p p lic a b le

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
-50-



SCHEDULE OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE - GRANTS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

P ro g ram  R evenues

T otal

T o tal

P rog ram

ExpendituresP ro g ram  N am e

C ash

R eceived

A ccoun ts

R eceivable

D eferred

R evenue

State C ategorical A id Programs:
C hild D evelopm ent P rog ram $ 1 18 ,258 $ - $ 11 ,276 $ 106 ,982 $ 1 0 6 ,982

C hild D evelopm ent P rog ram 1 74 ,718 105 - 174 ,823 174 ,823

C hild D evelopm ent P rog ram 2 ,1 6 8 2 39 - 2 ,4 0 7 2 ,4 0 7

C oopera tive  A gencies R esou rces  F o r  

E ducation  (C A R E ) 124 ,899 3 ,3 2 4 121 ,575 121 ,575

C o o p era tiv e  A gencies F o s te r Y outh  Ed 

S u p p o r t (C A F Y E S ) 199 ,933 - 85 ,913 114 ,020 1 1 4 ,020

E x tended  O ppo rtu n ity  P ro g ram  and

S ervices (E O P & S ) 1 ,1 4 9 ,1 0 0 1 ,1 4 9 ,1 0 0 1 ,1 4 9 ,1 0 0

E x tended  O pportun ity  P ro g ram  and 

S ervices (E O P & S ) p rio r y e ar 4 4 ,0 9 8 4 4 ,0 9 8 4 4 ,0 9 8

Instructional E quipm ent &  L ib ra ry  M aterials 9 7 3 ,521 - 5 3 3 ,325 4 4 0 ,1 9 6 4 4 0 ,1 9 6

A ssocia te  D egree  N ursing 1 21 ,617 9 ,011 - 1 3 0 ,628 1 3 0 ,628

C en te r fo r A pplied  B iotech (16 ) - - (16 ) (16 )

C T E  140 (C T E  C o labora tive/S upp lem ental G rants) 179 ,255 - - 179 ,255 179 ,255

S B 1 0 7 0 3 8 ,8 2 5 - - 3 8 ,8 2 5 3 8 ,8 2 5

C T E -E nhancem en t Funds 3 3 0 ,1 4 4 4 4 ,7 9 0 - 3 7 4 ,9 3 4 3 7 4 ,9 3 4

B ridges to  S te m  C ell R esearch 9 2 2 ,0 6 5 - 6 0 2 ,9 2 6 3 1 9 ,1 3 9 3 1 9 ,1 3 9

M E S A 3 3 ,5 7 7 13 ,780 - 4 7 ,3 5 7 4 7 ,3 5 7

S S S P  - N o n  C red it 4 4 9 ,2 9 6 - 2 7 9 ,4 9 6 169 ,800 1 6 9 ,800

A B  86 56 ,951 - - 56 ,951 56 ,951

A B  104 - A E B G 1,7 8 3 ,5 2 8 - 1 ,3 8 5 ,5 2 7 3 9 8 ,001 39 8 ,0 0 1

F o s te r C are  E duca tion  P rog ram 3 6 ,6 6 2 3 7 ,0 8 9 - 73 ,7 5 1 73 ,7 5 1

B asic Skills 3 6 3 ,9 7 9 - 2 6 0 ,7 3 5 1 0 3 ,244 10 3 ,2 4 4

C a l G ran t "B " 2 ,0 9 4 ,6 0 8 - - 2 ,0 9 4 ,6 0 8 2 ,0 9 4 ,6 0 8

C a l G ran t "C" 13 ,274 - - 13 ,2 7 4 13 ,2 7 4

S tuden t Financial A id A dm inistration 2 4 3 ,8 4 2 - - 2 4 3 ,8 4 2 2 4 3 ,8 4 2

S F A A  A ugm entation 5 9 3 ,945 - - 59 3 ,9 4 5 5 9 3 ,9 4 5

S S S P  - C red it 5 ,6 1 2 ,2 7 5 - 2 ,1 8 1 ,6 9 9 3 ,4 3 0 ,5 7 6 3 ,4 3 0 ,5 7 6

D isab led  S tudents P ro g ram  and  Services (D S P S ) 1 ,0 3 9 ,0 0 3 - - 1 ,0 3 9 ,0 0 3 1 ,0 3 9 ,0 0 3

C alw orks 3 1 8 ,7 0 6 - 6 ,4 2 5 3 1 2 ,281 31 2 ,2 8 1

S tuden t Equity 2 ,9 4 5 ,3 1 1 - 7 7 9 ,3 6 9 2 ,1 6 5 ,9 4 2 2 ,1 6 5 ,9 4 2

C a re e r  Pathw ays T rust (Ametll) - 28 5 ,3 0 1 - 28 5 ,3 0 1 28 5 ,3 0 1

L inked  L earning  Pathw ays to  B acca 4 1 ,1 2 2 - 3 3 ,5 8 6 7 ,5 3 6 7 ,5 3 6

P ro p  3 9  C lean  E nergy W o rk 19 ,363 - - 19 ,363 19 ,363

Full Time S tuden t S uccess  G ran t (N E W ) 7 4 1 ,1 3 3 - 144 ,733 59 6 ,4 0 0 5 9 6 ,4 0 0

C S U L A  S T E M  Ed. C onsortium - 6 32 - 632 6 32

M atriculation- A dm inistration (P rio r Y ear) 4 0 6 ,6 2 5 - 2 2 9 ,0 3 6 1 7 7 ,589 1 7 7 ,589

S ta ff  D iversity  - A B 1725 9 ,051 - - 9 ,051 9 ,051

C A  G o v  Off. G O  Biz 31 ,5 1 5 6 2 ,5 0 2 - 9 4 ,0 1 7 9 4 ,0 1 7

C a re e r  Pathw ays T rust (L A  H i-T ech) 1 2 ,675 ,125 - 8 ,9 5 8 ,9 8 6 3 ,7 1 6 ,1 3 9 3 ,7 1 6 ,1 3 9

T otal State C ategorical Aid Programs $ 3 3 ,8 8 7 ,4 7 6 $ 4 5 3 ,4 4 9 $ 1 5 ,4 9 6 ,3 5 6 $ 1 8 ,8 4 4 ,5 6 9 $ 1 8 ,8 4 4 ,5 6 9

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF WORKLOAD MEASURES FOR STATE GENERAL 
APPORTIONMENT ANNUAL (ACTUAL) ATTENDANCE 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

A n n u a l R e c a l  - F a c to r e d  F T E S

C a te g o r ie s R e p o r t e d  D a t a

A u d it

A d ju stm e n ts R e v i s e d  D a t a

A. Summer Intersession (Summer 2015 only)

1. Noncredit1 81.93 81.93

2. Credit1 1,499.36 1,499.36
B. Summer Intersession (Summer 2015 - Prior to July 1, 2016

1. Noncredit1 161.19 161.19
2. Credit1 1,676.70 1,676.70

C. Primary Terms (Exclusive of Summer Intersession)
1. Census Procedure Courses
(a) Weekly Census Contact Hours 16,277.96 16,277.96
(b) Daily Census Contact Hours 440.11 440.11
2. Actual Hours of Attendance Procedure Courses

(a) Noncredit1 976.40 976.40
(b) Credit1 479.54 479.54
3. Independent Study/Work Experience
(a) Weekly Census Contact Hours 1,157.20 1,157.20
(b) Daily Census Contact Hours 751.84 751.84
(c) Noncredit Independent Study/Distance Education Courses - - -

D. Total FTES 23,502.23 - 23,502.23

Supplemental Information (subset of above information)
E. In-service Training Courses (FTES) -
H. Basic Skills courses and Immigrant Education

(a) Noncredit1 960.96
(b) Credit1 1,284.75

C C F S  3 2 0  A d d e n d u m

CDCP Noncredit FTES 1,045.71

Centers FTES

(a) Noncredit1 935.69
(b) Credit1 464.38

lIncluding Career Development and College Preparation (CDCP) FTES

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET 
REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

The audit resulted in no adjustments to the fund balances reported on the June 30, 2016 Annual 
Financial and Budget Report (CCFS-311) based upon governmental accounting principles. 
Additional entries were made to comply with the GASB 34/35 reporting requirements. These 
entries are not considered audit adjustments for purposes of this reconciliation.

General Fund Balance $ 22,508,134
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund Balance 6,581,010
Other Debt Service Fund Balance 2,033,632
Child Development Fund Balance 248,386
Capital Outlay Fund Balance 9,137,491
Bond Construction Fund Balance 8,645,943
Bookstore Fund Balance 2,382,459
Other Enterprise Fund Balance 127,334
Self-Insurance Fund Balance 18,306,439
Student Financial Aid Fund Balance 737,534

Total fund balances as reported on the Annual Financial and
Budget Report (CCFS-311) 70,708,362

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:

Capital assets used for governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported as assets in governmental funds. Net capital assets of $12,365 is already recorded in other
governmental funds. Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation are added to total net assets. 209,442,021

Deferred charges on refunding debt are recorded as deferred outflows and are amortized over the life
of the refunded debt. 3,308,873

Deferred outflows - pensions are for contributions made during the fiscal year that are removed from
expenses and are recorded as a deferred outflow of resources. This amount will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. Other deferred outflows will be amortized. 15,034,977

Capital lease are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities
in the governmental funds. The liability is added to the statement of net position which reduces the
total net assets reported. (2,835,361)

Compensated absences, load banking and supplemental employee retirement plans are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. (6,749,602)

Long-term liabilities related to bonds are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Bond related liabilities are added to the statement
of net position which reduces the total net assets reported. (94,951,971)

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET 
REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounts for other post-employment retirement plan is reported as a liability in the statement of net
position (7,844,133)

The liability of employers and nonemployers contributing to employees for benefits provided through a
defined benefit pension plan is recorded as net pension liabilities. (115,963,807)

Deferred inflows - pensions represent an acquisition of net assets by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period. The deferred inflows of resources -  pensions, results from various differences 
between estimated and actual results. These amounts will be deferred and amortized. (11,304,696)

Interest expense related to bonds incurred through June 30, 2016 is accrued as a current lability on the
statement of net position which reduces the total net assets reported. ______ (517,741)

Total net position $ 58,326,922

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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RECONCILIATION OF 50 PERCENT LAW CALCULATION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Activity (ECSA)
ECS 84362 A 

Instructional Salary Cost 
AC 0100-5900 & AC 6110

Activity (ECSB) 
ECS 84362 B 

Total CEE 
AC 0100-6799

Object/TOP
Codes

R eported
D ata

Audit
Adjustments

R evised
D ata

R eported
D ata

Audit
Adjustments

R evised
D ata

Academic Salaries
Instructional Salaries 110 0

C o n tra c to r  o r  Regular 130 0 2 6 ,6 6 3 ,5 0 4 2 6 ,6 6 3 ,5 0 4 2 7 ,3 9 3 ,7 0 7 2 7 ,3 9 3 ,7 0 7

O th e r 2 6 ,7 6 6 ,3 6 3 2 6 ,7 6 6 ,3 6 3 2 7 ,8 7 8 ,2 9 9 2 7 ,8 7 8 ,2 9 9

Total Instructional Salaries 5 3 ,4 2 9 ,8 6 7 5 3 ,4 2 9 ,8 6 7 5 5 ,2 7 2 ,0 0 6 - 5 5 ,2 7 2 ,0 0 6

N on-Instructional Salaries
C o n tra c t  o r  R egular 120 0 - 9 ,2 8 9 ,9 1 3 9 ,2 8 9 ,9 1 3

O th e r 140 0 - 6 4 3 ,2 6 2 6 4 3 ,2 6 2

Total Non-Instructional Salaries - - 9 ,9 3 3 ,1 7 5 - 9 ,9 3 3 ,1 7 5

Total Academic Salaries 5 3 ,4 2 9 ,8 6 7 - 5 3 ,4 2 9 ,8 6 7 6 5 ,2 0 5 ,1 8 1 - 6 5 ,2 0 5 ,1 8 1

Classified Salaries
N on-Instructional Salaries

R egu lar S tatus 2 1 0 0 - 2 1 ,7 5 6 ,1 6 2 2 1 ,7 5 6 ,1 6 2

O th e r 2 3 0 0 - 2 ,9 6 7 ,1 0 3 2 ,9 6 7 ,1 0 3

Total Non-Instructional Salaries - - - 2 4 ,7 2 3 ,2 6 5 - 2 4 ,7 2 3 ,2 6 5

Instructional Aides
R egu lar S tatus 2 2 0 0 - -

O th e r 2 4 0 0 7 3 ,1 1 0 7 3 ,1 1 0 7 3 ,1 1 0 7 3 ,1 1 0

Total Instructional Aides 7 3 ,1 1 0 - 7 3 ,1 1 0 7 3 ,1 1 0 - 7 3 ,1 1 0

Total C lassified Salaries 7 3 ,1 1 0 - 7 3 ,1 1 0 2 4 ,7 9 6 ,3 7 5 - 2 4 ,7 9 6 ,3 7 5

Employee Benefits 3 0 0 0 1 6 ,6 7 1 ,2 4 5 - 1 6 ,6 7 1 ,2 4 5 3 4 ,9 3 5 ,1 2 0 - 3 4 ,9 3 5 ,1 2 0

Supplies and M aterials 4 0 0 0 - - - 8 1 0 ,1 0 3 - 8 1 0 ,1 0 3

O ther Operating Expenses 5 0 0 0 4 9 ,7 0 4 - 4 9 ,7 0 4 1 2 ,0 6 3 ,7 5 6 - 1 2 ,0 6 3 ,7 5 6

Equipment R eplacem ent 6 4 2 0 - - - - - -

Total Expenditures Prior to Exclusions 7 0 ,2 2 3 ,9 2 6 - 7 0 ,2 2 3 ,9 2 6 1 3 7 ,8 1 0 ,5 3 5 - 1 3 7 ,8 1 0 ,5 3 5

Exclusions
Activities to Exclude

Instructional S taff-R etirees ' B enefits and

R etirem en t Incentives 5 9 0 0 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6

S tu d e n t H e a lth  S erv ices  A b o v e  A m o u n t C o llec ted 6441 - -

S tu d en t T ran sp o rta tio n 6491 - 1 0 1 ,1 2 6 1 0 1 ,1 2 6

N o n -in stru ctio n al S ta ff-R e tirees’ B enefits  a n d

R etirem en t Incentives 6 7 4 0 - 1 ,8 9 1 ,9 0 2 1 ,8 9 1 ,9 0 2

Objects to Exclude
R en ts  an d  L e a ses 5 0 6 0 - 8 0 8 ,2 3 2 8 0 8 ,2 3 2

L o tte ry  Expend itu res

A cad em ic  Salaries 100 0 - -

C lassified  Salaries 2 0 0 0 - -

E m ployee  B enefits 3 0 0 0 - -

S upplies an d  M ateria ls 4 0 0 0 - -

Softw are 4 1 0 0 - -

B o o k s , M agazines, &  P eriod icals 4 2 0 0 - -

Instructional S upplies &  M ateria ls 4 3 0 0 - -

N oninstructional, Supplies &  M ateria ls 4 4 0 0 - -

T o ta l Supplies an d  M ateria ls

O th e r  O p era tin g  E x p e n se s  a n d  Serv ices 5 0 0 0 - 3 ,4 2 7 ,0 5 6 3 ,4 2 7 ,0 5 6

C a p ita l O utlay 6 0 0 0 - -

L ib ra ry  B o o k s 6 3 0 0 - -

E qu ipm en t 6 4 0 0 - -

E q u ipm en t - A dditional 6 4 1 0 - -

E q u ipm en t - R e p lacem en t 6 4 2 0 - -

T o ta l Equ ipm en t

T o ta l C a p ita l O u tlay

O th e r  O utgo 7 0 0 0 - -

Total Exclusions 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6 - 2 ,1 0 5 ,2 6 6 8 ,3 3 3 ,5 8 2 - 8 ,3 3 3 ,5 8 2

Total for ECS 84362, 50% Law 6 8 ,1 1 8 ,6 6 0 - 6 8 ,1 1 8 ,6 6 0 1 2 9 ,4 7 6 ,9 5 3 - 1 2 9 ,4 7 6 ,9 5 3

P ercent of CEE (Instructional Salary Cost / Total CEE) 5 2 .6 1 % 0 % 5 2 .6 1 % 10 0 % 0 % 10 0 %

50% of Current Expense of Education | 6 4 ,7 3 8 ,4 7 6 - 6 4 ,7 3 8 ,4 7 6

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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PROPOSITION 30 EDUCATION PROTECTION ACCOUNT EXPENDITURE REPORT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

A c tiv ity  C la s s if ic a t io n

O b je c t

C o d e

U n r e s tr ic te d

EPA Proceeds: 8630
$ 18,481,660

A c tiv ity  C la s s if ic a t io n

O b je c t

C o d e

S a la r ie s  

a n d  B e n e f it s  

(1 0 0 0 -3 0 0 0 )

O p e r a t in g

E x p e n s e s

(4 0 0 0 -5 0 0 0 )

C a p ita l

O u tla y

(6 0 0 0 )

T o ta l

Instructional Activities 0100-5900 $ 18,481,660 $ $ $ 18,481,660

T o ta l  E x p e n d itu r e s  fo r  E P A * $ 18,481,660 $ - $ - 18,481,660
R e v e n u e  le s s  E x p e n d itu r e s -

*Total Expenditures for EPA may not include Administrator Salaries and Benefits or other administrative costs.

See the accompanying notes to the supplementary information.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the 
federal award activity of the District under programs of the federal governmental for the year 
ended June 30, 2016. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of the District, it 
is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows 
of the District.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting. Such 
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal 
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. The District did not use 
the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance -  Grants

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance -  grants includes state 
award activity for the year ended June 30, 2016. Expenditures reported on the schedule are 
reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportionment Annual (Actual) 
Attendance

The Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportionment represents the basis of 
apportionment of the District's annual source of funding.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

This schedule reports any audit adjustments made to the fund balances of all funds as reported on 
the Annual Financial and Budget Report (Form CCFS-311).
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

NOTE 1: PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES 

Reconciliation of 50 Percent Law Calculation

This schedule reports any audit adjustments made to the 50 percent law calculation (Education 
Code Section 84362).

Proposition 30 Education Protection Account Expenditure Report

This schedule reports how funds received from the passage of Proposition 30 Education 
Protection Act were expended.
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
Pasadena Area Community College District
Pasadena, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements 
of the Pasadena Area Community College District (the District), as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 14, 
2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non­
compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP 
Glendora, California 
November 14, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND REPORT 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Trustees
Pasadena Area Community College District
Pasadena, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Pasadena Area Community College District’s (the District) compliance with the 
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the 
District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. The District’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We 
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code o f Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a 
legal determination of the District's compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND REPORT ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District’s internal control 
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on 
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance, for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND REPORT ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED 
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP 
Glendora, California 
November 14, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

The Board of Trustees
Pasadena Area Community College District
Pasadena, California

We have audited the Pasadena Area Community College District’s (the District) compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the 2015-16 Contracted District Audit 
Manual, published by the California Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office for the year ended 
June 30, 2016. The District’s state compliance requirements are identified in the table provided.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the state laws and regulations as identified 
below.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit of the 
types of compliance requirements referred to below.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the 
2015-16 Contracted District Audit Manual, published by the California Community Colleges 
Chancellor’s Office. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the specific areas listed below has 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on state 
compliance. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s 
compliance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Compliance Requirements Tested

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to 
determine the District's compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following 
items:

Section Description
Procedures
Performed

421 Salaries of Classroom Instructors (50 Percent Law) Yes
423 Apportionment for Instructional Service Agreements/Contracts Yes
424 State General Apportionment Funding System Yes
425 Residency Determination for Credit Courses Yes
426 Students Actively Enrolled Yes
427 Concurrent Enrollment of K-12 Students in Community College 

Credit Courses
Yes

429 Student Support Services Program Yes
430 Scheduled Maintenance Program Yes
431 Gann Limit Calculation Yes
435 Open Enrollment Yes
438 Student Fees -  Health Fees and Use of Health Fee Funds Yes
439 Proposition 39 Clean Energy Funds Yes
440 Intersession Extension Program Not applicable
475 Disabled Student Programs and Services (DSPS) Yes
479 To Be Arranged Hours (TBA) Yes
490 Proposition 1D State Bond Funded Projects Yes
491 Proposition 30 Education Protection Account Funds Yes

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, the District complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred 
to above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on 
the requirements of the 2015-16 Contracted District Audit Manual, published by the California 
Community Colleges Chancellor’s Office. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose.

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP 
Glendora, California 
November 14, 2016
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
SUMMARY OF AUDITOR RESULTS 

June 30, 2016

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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SECTION I -  SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

Financial Statements
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified______

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements 
noted? No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal awards: 

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified______

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of Major Federal Programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
84.007, 84.032,
84.033, 84.063 Student Financial Aid Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $1,210,851_______

Yes



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2016

There were no findings and questioned costs related to basic financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2016.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
RELATED TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

June 30, 2016

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

There were no findings and questioned costs related to federal awards for June 30, 2016.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
RELATED TO STATE AWARDS 

June 30, 2016

STATE AWARDS FINDINGS

There were no findings and questioned costs related to state awards for June 30, 2016.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDING AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2016

2015-001 Return to Title IV 

Original Finding: 2014-001
CFDA Title and Number: Student Financial Aid Cluster (84.007, 84.033, 84.063, and 84.268) 
Federal Award Number and Year: P063P14004, 2014-15 
Name of Federal Agency: Department of Education 
Name of the Pass-through Agency: Not Applicable

Criteria: According to 34 CFR 668.22(j)(2) and 34 CFR 668.22(1)(3), an institute must return 
the amount of title IV funds for which it is responsible as soon as possible but no later than 30 
days after the date of the institution’s determination that the student withdrew as defined in 
paragraph (1)(3) of this section. When a student unofficially drops, the school must ensure that 
Title IV funds are returned within a reasonable period of time. A school must determine the 
withdrawal date (for a student who withdrew without providing notification) within 30 calendar 
days from the earlier of (1) the end of the payment period or period of enrollment, as applicable, 
(2) the end of the academic year, or (3) the end of the student’s educational program.

Condition: During the testing of the requirements for Return to Title IV, the following 
exceptions were noted:

Fall Semester 2014

• Five of ten students selected that withdrew for Fall 2014, the calculation for Return to 
Title IV funds were not completed until April 2015 for Fall 2014 semester. Based on the 
criteria, the District did not complete the Return to Title IV calculation within the 
required 30 days after the end of the payment period or period of enrollment.

• Five of ten students selected that withdrew for Fall 2014, the Return to Title IV funds 
were returned April, 2015 for Fall 2014. Since the calculation was performed late, 
consequently, the funds were returned after the required 30 days after the end of the 
payment period or period of enrollment.

Cause: The District implemented a new Student Accounting Software during 2013-14. 
Procedures have improved in Fall 2014 and Spring 2015, however, a review process was not 
established to ensure all compliance requirements were followed.

Recommendation: Implement procedures, either utilizing the system or other means, to comply 
with Return of Title IV requirements. Perform calculations on all eligible students to allow 
timely communication so that Title IV funds are returned to the granting agency.

Questioned Costs: Not quantified, the District has returned the Title IV funds by offsetting 
against positive awards during the draw down process.
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PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDING AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2016

2015-001 Return to Title IV

Effect: Not in compliance with 34 CFR sections 668.22(j)(2) and 668.22(l)(3)

Current Status: Implemented 

2015-002 Time and Effort Report

CFDA Title and Number: Perkins Title I, Part C -  CTEA (84.048A)
Federal Award Number and Year: 14-Col-040, 2014-15 
Name of Federal Agency: Department of Education 
Name of the Pass-through Agency: Not Applicable

Criteria: As required by 2 C.F.R. Part 225, monthly time and effort reports should be prepared 
for Multiple Cost Objective and semi-annual Time and Effort Reports should be prepared for 
Single Cost Objective to support wages funded by federally funded programs. Reports should be 
prepared timely and signed by the individual and their reporting supervisor.

Condition: It was noted through testing, time and effort reports were not prepared for the 
programs tested.

Questioned Costs: Not quantified, satisfactory evidence was obtained to verify employee’s time 
and effort towards the program.

Effect: Not in compliance with 2 C.F.R. Part 225.

Recommendation: Implement procedures to ensure time and effort reports are prepared on a 
timely basis.

Current Status: Implemented

2015-003 SECTION 424 - STATE GENERAL APPORTIONMENT SYSTEM

Criteria: Per CCR, title 5, Article 4, section 58030 - The governing board of each district shall 
adopt procedures that will document all course enrollment, attendance and disenrollment 
information required by the provisions of this subchapter. Authorized procedures shall include 
rules for retention of support documentation which will enable an independent determination 
regarding the accuracy of tabulations submitted by the district to the Chancellor's Office as the 
basis of its claim for State support. Such support documentation procedures shall provide for 
accurate and timely attendance and contact hour data and shall be so structured as to provide for 
internal controls.

-73-



PASADENA AREA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDING AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2016

2015-003 SECTION 424 - STATE GENERAL APPORTIONMENT SYSTEM

Condition: It was noted through recalculation of contact hours for BIOL 001, which is an 
Independent Study Weekly courses. The contact hours reported on the Detail CCFS-320 Report, 
which was used to prepare the actual P2 CCFS-320 Report, did not agree with auditor’s 
recalculation. The District performed an internal investigation and noted an error in the system 
set-up of this course.

Context: A statistical sample was derived from the P-2 report. The issue appears to be an 
isolated incident as all Independent Study Weekly courses were not affected.

Questioned Costs: FTES reported in error for independent weekly census is 20.36; this 
calculates to approximately $94,399 based on a per FTES amount of $4,636.49

Effect: Not in compliance with CCR Title 5 regulations as detailed above.

Recommendation: Investigate the cause for this issue and implement a review and approval 
process to prevent potential errors in calculating FTES.

Current Status: Implemented

2015-004 SECTION 423 - INSTRUCTIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Criteria: Per CCR, title 5, Article 5, section 58058 - Where the instructor is not a paid employee 
of the district, the college or district must furnish a written agreement or contract with each 
instructor conducting instruction. Such written agreement or contact shall state that the college or 
district has the primary right to control and direct the instructional activities of the instructor.

Condition: It was noted through testing, a written contract between the District and the 
instructor, who is an employee of the contracting party was not furnished prior to the 
commencement of instruction.

Context: This is a systemic issue as all Instructional Service Agreement classes were affected.

Questioned Costs: 28.75 FTES, which calculates to approximately $133,317 based on a per 
FTES amount of $4,636.49.

Effect: Not in compliance with CCR Title 5 regulations as detailed above.

Recommendation: Develop policies and procedures that requires a written contract to be 
completed with the instructor prior to instruction.

Current Status: Implemented for Spring 2016. No FTES reported for Fall 2015.
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